MEDION®

2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer

MEDION[®] LIFE[®] P69042 (MD 83436)



Instruction manual





2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer

Repair and Refurbished Goods or Parts Notice

Unfortunately, from time to time, faulty products are manufactured which need to be returned to the Supplier for repair.

Please be aware that if your product is capable of retaining user-generated data (such as files stored on a computer hard drive, telephone numbers stored on a mobile telephone, songs stored on a portable media player, games saved on a games console or files stored on a USB memory stick) during the process of repair, some or all of your stored data may be lost. We recommend you save this data elsewhere prior to sending the product for repair.

You should also be aware that rather than repairing goods, we may replace them with refurbished goods of the same type or use refurbished parts in the repair process.

Please be assured though, refurbished parts or replacements are only used where they meet ALDI's stringent quality specifications.

If at any time you feel your repair is being handled unsatisfactorily, you may escalate your complaint. Please telephone us on 1 300 884 987 or write to us at:

MEDION Australia Pty Ltd St. Leonards, NSW 2065

Australia

MEDION Help Desk 1300 884 987 (Operating Hours: Mon-Fri 8:30AM to 6:00PM EST) <u>Email: australia@medion.com</u>



Table of contents

About these instructions	3
Symbols and key words used in these instructions	3
Proper use	4
Information on conformity	4
Safety and maintenance	5
Operating safety	5
Power supply	5
Installation location	6
Information on handling batteries	
Never carry out repairs yourself	8
Thunderstorms / non-use	8
Included in delivery	9
Description	10
Loudspeaker panel	10
Wireless subwoofer (reverse side)	11
Remote control	12
Start of operation	
Putting the loudspeaker panel into operation	13
Putting the subwoofer into operation	13
Inserting the batteries in the remote control	13
Operation	14
Connecting audio equipment	14
Switching the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer on	15
Connecting the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer manually	16
Programming the remote control	16
Adjusting the volume	17
Bass boost	
Switching the 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer off	
Servicing	18
Cleaning	18
Customer service	18
What to do in case of malfunctions	18
Disposal	19
Technical data	20

After Sales Support

2 of 20

About these instructions



Please read these operating instructions carefully and follow all the instructions given. This will guarantee reliable operation and a longer life expectancy for your 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer. Always store these instructions near the 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer. Keep the operating instructions so that you can pass them on with the 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer if you sell it.

Symbols and key words used in these instructions

	DANGER! Warning of immediate risk of fatal injury! WARNING! Warning of possible risk of fatal injury and/or serious irreversible injuries!
	CAUTION! Please follow the guidelines to avoid injuries and damage to property! CAUTION! Please follow the guidelines to avoid property damage!
fi	NOTE! Additional information on using the product
	NOTE! Please follow the guidelines in the operating instructions!
	WARNING! Warning of risk of electric shock!
•	Bullet point / information on occurrences during operation
•	Instructions to be carried out



Proper use

The 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer is designed to be connected to televisions. Other

devices can be connected, such as portable CD players, MP3 players, computers, notebooks and stereo systems.

The product is intended for private use only and not for industrial or commercial use.

Please note that we shall not be liable in cases of improper use:

- Do not modify the product without our consent and do not use any auxiliary equipment which we have not approved or supplied.
- Use only spare parts and accessories which we have supplied or approved.
- Heed all the information in these operating instructions, especially the safety information. Any other use is deemed improper and can cause personal injury or damage to the product.
- Do not use the product in extreme environmental conditions.

Information on conformity

You must comply with the European directives on electromagnetic compatibility (EMC) when you connect the product.

This product satisfies the basic requirements and relevant regulations of the Ecodesign Directive 2009/125/EC.

MEDION AG hereby declares that these products conform to the fundamental requirements and the remaining relevant regulations of the 1999/5/EC Directive and the Australian EMC framework.

For the full declarations of conformity please visit www.medion.com/conformity.

After Sales Support

Safety and maintenance

Operating safety

- Do not let children play with electrical appliances without supervision. Children are not always aware of potential hazards.
- Batteries can be fatal if swallowed. Therefore keep the product, the remote control and the batteries out of reach of babies and small children. If a battery is swallowed, please seek medical assistance immediately.
- DANGER! Keep plastic packaging out of reach of children. There is a risk of suffocation.
- This product is not intended for use by people (including children) with reduced physical, sensory or mental abilities or by people who lack the experience or knowledge to use it, unless they are supervised by a person responsible for their safety or have been instructed on its use. Children should be supervised to ensure that they do not play with the product.
- WARNING! In the interests of safety, never open the housing of the loudspeaker panel, the subwoofer or the mains adapter/mains plug! There is a risk of electric shock if the mains adapter housing is open. There are no parts requiring maintenance.

Power supply

- The sockets must be close to the product and easily accessible. Position the cables so that they cannot be stepped on or tripped over.
- Unplug the loudspeaker panel and the subwoofer at the mains in order to disconnect the power supply to the product. Always pull on the mains adapter/mains plug itself when removing it from the socket. To prevent damage, never pull on the cable.
- When not in use, unplug the loudspeaker and the subwoofer at the mains or use a master-slave power strip to prevent power consumption when switched off.

- Run the mains adapter on the loudspeaker panel and the mains plug on the subwoofer in earthed 240V ~ 50Hz sockets only. If you are not sure about the power supply at the set-up location, please ask your power supplier.
- Do not cover the mains adapter on the loudspeaker and the mains plug on the subwoofer in order to prevent them from being damaged by overheating.
- Stop using the mains adapter on the loudspeaker and the mains plug on the subwoofer if the product housing or lead is damaged. Replace the mains adapter with one of the same type.
- Use the mains adapter supplied or one of the same specification only (see "Technical data" on page 20), otherwise damage might occur.

Installation location

• During the first few hours of use, new products may give off a characteristic but totally harmless smell. This is unavoidable and disappears over time.

To help reduce the amount of odour build-up, we recommend that you ventilate the room at regular intervals. We have taken appropriate measures during the development of this product to ensure that levels are well below legal limits.

- Do not place containers filled with liquid, such as vases, on or in the vicinity of the transmitter, subwoofer and mains adapter. The container may tip over and the liquid may impair the electrical safety of the product.
- Protect the transmitter, loudspeakers, subwoofer, mains adapter and all connected devices from moisture, drips and splashes. Avoid dust, heat and direct sunlight in order to prevent malfunction.
- Do not place naked flames, such as lit candles, on or near the product.
- Do not place objects (e.g. newspapers, blankets, etc.) over the mains adapter on the loudspeaker or over the mains plug on the subwoofer in order to avoid overheating.

- Do not place any objects on the cables to avoid damaging them.
- Place and operate all the components on a stable, level and vibration-free surface to prevent the loudspeakers from falling down.
- Keep a distance of at least one metre from high frequencies and magnetic sources of interference (televisions, other loudspeaker boxes, mobile telephones, etc.) to avoid malfunctions.

Information on handling batteries

- The product is battery operated. Please note the following instructions on handling batteries:
- Never recharge batteries that are not intended to be recharged! There is a risk of explosion!
- Keep batteries away from children; do not throw them into a fire, short-circuit or dismantle them.
- When inserting batteries ensure that the polarity is correct.
- Always replace all batteries at the same time.
- Always use replacement batteries of the same type; do not mix different types of batteries or old and new batteries.
- Clean the contacts on the batteries and on the product before inserting the batteries.
- Remove depleted batteries immediately! There is an increased risk of leakage!
- WARNING! Never expose the batteries to excessive heat, such as sunshine, fire or similar sources.
- If this instruction is not heeded, the batteries may discharge beyond their end-point voltage and could leak! Remove batteries immediately to avoid damage.
- Avoid contact with skin, eyes and mucous membranes. If any of these areas come into contact with battery acid, rinse them immediately with plenty of clean water and consult a doctor as soon as possible.

• Remove the battery if the product will be out of use for an extended period of time.

Never carry out repairs yourself

- WARNING! In the interests of safety, never open the housing of the loudspeaker panel, the subwoofer or the mains adapter! There is a risk of electric shock if the mains adapter housing is open. There are no parts requiring maintenance.
- In the event of a fault please contact the MEDION Service Centre or an approved repair specialist.
- The cable on the mains adapter cannot be replaced. If the cable is damaged, the mains adapter must be scrapped and replaced with a mains adapter of the same type in order to avoid hazards. In such cases please contact the MEDION Service Centre.

Thunderstorms / non-use

• Disconnect the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer at the mains in the event of a prolonged absence or during a thunderstorm.

Included in delivery

Please check your purchase to ensure that all the items are included. If any parts are missing, please inform us within 14 days of purchase. Included in delivery is the following:

- TV loudspeaker panel
- Wireless subwoofer (integrated mains cable)
- Remote control with battery
- Audio cable (3.5 mm jack -> 3.5 mm jack)
- Audio cable (3.5 mm jack -> 2 x cinch)
- Mains adapter (loudspeaker panel for TV)
- Instruction manual
- Warranty certificate
- Warranty sticker



DANGER!

Keep plastic packaging out of reach of children. There is a risk of suffocation.

After Sales Support

Description

Loudspeaker panel

Front



Rear



After Sales Support

Wireless subwoofer (reverse side)



1	Pair LED Connection display	2	PAIR Button to connect to loudspeaker
3	Mains cable		

After Sales Support		
Telephone:	1300 884 987	
Internet:	www.medion.com.au	

Remote control



1	Learn LED Learn mode display	5	RS BASS Switch bass amplifier on and off
2	LEARN Switch on learn mode	6	TV basic function (Functions have to be programmed in learn mode)
3	MUTE Switch sound off and on	7	SOURCE A - Audio source selection
4	VOL +/- Increase or reduce volume	8	STANDBY On and off switch

After Sales Support

Start of operation

Putting the loudspeaker panel into operation

The loudspeaker panel runs on the mains adapter supplied.

Connecting the mains adapter

- Connect the plug on the mains adapter (Shenzhen Ferex Electronics Co., Ltd FBP060-180S300J2) to the DC socket on the loudspeaker panel.
- The mains adapter needs a connection cable (supplied with the product). Put the cable into the mains adapter socket and the plug into a wall socket.

Putting the subwoofer into operation

The subwoofer runs on the integrated mains cable.

Insert the mains plug into a wall socket.

Inserting the batteries in the remote control

The remote control is supplied with a CR2025 3V lithium battery already inserted.



NOTE

When you use the remote control for the first time, pull out the transparent strip marked "Please remove before use" without opening the battery compartment.

The battery needs to be changed if the product fails to respond or is slow to respond to the remote control. Proceed as follows to change the battery:



- Press the catch (1) and remove the battery holder complete with battery (2) from the remote control. Comply with the legal requirements when disposing of the used battery.
- Insert a new CR2025 3V battery in the holder with the positive terminal facing upwards. Always make sure the battery is the right way round.

After	Sales	Support

 Push the battery holder complete with battery back into the remote control as far as it will go.



CAUTION

Risk of explosion if batteries are replaced incorrectly. Replace batteries only with the same or equivalent type.

Operation

Connecting audio equipment

- Please read the information in the section "Safety and maintenance" on page 5.
- Also comply with the operating instructions of the device to which you want to connect the soundbar.
- Switch off all devices before connecting them to each other.

You can connect a number of different audio devices to this product, e.g. an MP3 player, a CD player, the receiver of your stereo system, a computer or even your television.

Using the AUX IN connection

You will need an audio cable with cinch plugs. The product is supplied with a 1 cinch audio connection cable $2 \times \text{cinch} \rightarrow 3.5 \text{ mm}$ jack.

- Set the audio device to a medium volume. Then switch it off.
- Plug the 3.5 mm jack into the audio input socket AUX IN on the loudspeaker panel.
- Plug the red and the white cinch connectors into the sockets of the corresponding colours on the output device.



NOTE

Pieces of equipment like stereo receivers or television sets usually have one red and one white audio output socket. These are usually marked OUT, AUDIO OUT, LINE OUT or similar.

Optical connections

Digital amplifiers can be connected at the port marked "**OPTICAL**". You will need an optical digital cable (fibre-optic cable - not supplied with the product - available from specialist retailers).

- Set the audio device to a medium volume. Then switch it off.
- ▶ Plug the connector into the **OPTICAL** socket on the loudspeaker.
- Plug the connector into the corresponding digital input socket on your digital receiver.

NOTE



The MUTE function is not enabled in this mode.

Use of the headphone socket

Portable devices, e.g. CD player or MP3 player, can be connected to the audio equipment socket "**MP3 LINK**" (top of loudspeaker panel, jack \emptyset = 3.5 mm). Set the audio device to a medium volume. Then switch it off.



NOTE

If the volume decreases after switching off the audio device, set the volume back to a medium level after connecting the audio device. If the volume on the audio device is too low, there may be disruptions in the transmission between the transmitter and the loudspeaker panel.

Plug the connector into the headphone output socket on the audio device.

Switching the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer on

- Press the STANDBY button on the top of the loudspeaker panel or the STANDBY button on the remote control to switch the units on.
- Wait for the automatic connection between the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer.

If the connection is established, the display on the front of the loudspeaker panel will light up blue and the Pair LED on the subwoofer will light up green.

The units are now ready for operation.

- If the connection between the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer is not established, the display will light up purple and the Pair LED on the subwoofer will remain red or purple. In this case please connect the units manually.
- Switch on the audio device, select a medium volume and start playback.



NOTE

If a TV or external unit is connected then the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer will switch on automatically when the television or the external device that is connected is switched on.

If the TV or the external unit are disconnected or switched off then the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer will switch off automatically after one minute.

If the volume on the television or an external device is too low then, likewise, the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer will switch off after about one minute.

Connecting the loudspeaker panel and subwoofer manually

- The unit must be in standby mode.
- Press the "VOLUME +" button on the top of the loudspeaker panel for 3 seconds. The operating LED will flash red.
- Press the "PAIR" button on the reverse side of the subwoofer, again keeping the button pressed for 3 seconds. The PAIR LED will flash blue and purple alternately.
- When both LEDs flash rapidly and then light up red, this indicates that the connection is established.
- If both LEDs continue to flash, this indicates that the connection has not been established.



NOTE

If the attempt to connect the units fails again, clear the area around the units of any potential sources of interference (mobile telephones, etc.) and then repeat the steps listed above.

Programming the remote control

You can control up to seven functions on your television with the programmable remote control supplied with this product. This means that you will be able to control your television and the 2.1 sound system with just one remote control.

The following buttons are preassigned at the factory for the operation of a TV: STANDBY, FUNCTION, ENTER, TV VOL+/VOL-, TV CH+/CH-.



NOTE

The 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer cannot be operated by the remote control while it is being programmed.



 Place the remote control (A) about 0.5 to 5 cm away from your TV remote (B).



- Press the LEARN button for 2 seconds in order to activate the programming mode. A red LED on your remote control will light up.
- Press one of the TV buttons on your remote control (A); the red LED will start to flash.
- Press the button on your TV remote (B) which you want to teach into your 2.1 sound system remote (A). If the code transmission process is successful, the red LED will flash three times and then remain lit up. If the LED continues to flash, this indicates that the attempt at programming has not been successful.
- Repeat the above steps in order to program further buttons.
- Press the LEARN button again to save the settings and to exit the learn mode.

Adjusting the volume

Use the + / - buttons on the loudspeaker panel or on the remote control to adjust the volume to the required level:

- + Increase volume
- Reduce volume

The volume can be turned off completely by pressing the MUTE button on the remote control.

• Press the MUTE button again to restore the sound.

Bass boost

You can switch the bass boost on or off by pressing the RS BASS button on the remote control.

- Press the RS BASS button on the remote control to turn on the bass boost. The LED on the relevant piece of equipment will emit a slightly longer flash (about 1 to 2 seconds).
- Press the RS BASS button on the remote control to turn off the bass boost. The LED on the relevant piece of equipment will emit a slightly shorter flash (about 0.5 to 1 second).

Switching the 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer off

 Press the STANDBY button on the remote control or on the loudspeaker panel to switch the units off.



NOTE

Mains adapters draw current even when the unit is switched off. Unplug the 2.1 sound system at the mains in order to disconnect them from the power supply.

Servicing



WARNING!

Never try to open or repair the equipment yourself. There is a risk of electric shock!

Please contact our service centre if you have technical problems with the product. Repairs should be performed by our authorised service partners only.

Please contact our customer service in the following cases:

- Liquid has seeped inside the 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer.
- The 2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer is not working properly.
- The product has been dropped or the housing is damaged.

Cleaning

• Do not use solvents, corrosive cleaners or aerosol detergents to clean the product.

Pieces of furniture often have various varnish finishes or synthetic coatings and are treated with a wide range of care products. Some of these substances contain components which are capable of adverse reactions with the loudspeaker feet. Use a non-slip underlay to prevent this problem where applicable.

Customer service

What to do in case of malfunctions

Malfunctions often occur for the simplest of reasons, but some can also be complex and require lengthy analysis. We have included a brief troubleshooting guide below which may help to solve any problems. If these suggestions do not bring any remedy then we will be pleased to help you further. Just give us a call!

No sound / distorted sound

Is the audio device switched on, playback started, and have you set at least a medium volume?

• Increase the volume if necessary.

Is the loudspeaker volume set high enough?

• Increase the volume if necessary.

Distorted sound

Is there radio frequency interference?

- Change the position of the subwoofer and / or loudspeaker panel in order to avoid interference from external sources.
- Clear the area around the units of any potential sources of interference (mobile telephones, etc.).

Is the distance too great?

• Position the subwoofer and loudspeaker panel closer together.

Disposal

Packaging

Packaging and packaging materials which are no longer required can and should be recycled.

Correct disposal of this product

This symbol indicates that this product may not be thrown away with the household refuse. Old appliances contain valuable recyclable materials which should be disposed of through the proper channels in the interests of the environment and human health. Therefore please use the collection systems provided or send the product back to the place where you bought it so that it can be disposed of correctly and recycled as appropriate.

Batteries

Do not dispose of used and defective batteries in the household rubbish. Batteries should be taken to a collection point for used batteries.

After Sales Support		
Telephone:	1300 884 987	
Internet:	www.medion.com.au	

Technical data

Loudspeaker panel

Model: Radio frequency range: Range: ON indicator: Power output: Connections:

Mains adapter

Model:

Input: Output:

Wireless subwoofer

Power output: Input: 40 W RMS 240V ~ 50Hz, 18W

CE2200C N26968

P69042 (MD 83436) 2402 - 2483 MHz Max. 8 m Light-emitting diode (LED) 2 x 25W RMS 2 audio inputs (3.5 mm jack) 1 digital audio input (optical) Mains adapter connection

Shenzhen Ferex Electronics Co., Ltd FBP060-180S300J2 100-240V ~ 50/60Hz, 1.4A DC 18V --- 3A

After Sales Support

20 of 20

MEDION®



MEDION Australia Pty Ltd St Leonards, NSW 2065 Australia

Hotline: 1300 884 987 Opening hours: Mon - Fri 08:30AM to 06:00PM EST

> Internet www.medion.com.au

E-mail Support australia@medion.com



2.1 Channel Sound Bar with Wireless Subwoofer Warranty Details

The product is guaranteed to be free from defects in workmanship and parts for a period of 12 months from the date of purchase. Defects that occur within this warranty period, under normal use and care, will be repaired, replaced or refunded at our discretion. The benefits conferred by this warranty are in addition to all rights and remedies in respect of the product that the consumer has under the Competition and Consumer Act 2010 and similar state and territory laws.

Our goods come with guarantees that cannot be excluded under the Australian Consumer Law. You are entitled to a replacement or refund for a major failure and for compensation for any other reasonably foreseeable loss or damage. You are also entitled to have the goods repaired or replaced if the goods fail to be of acceptable quality and the failure does not amount to a major failure.

